
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE & CITY OF NOTTINGHAM FIRE & RESCUE  AUTHORITY - 
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Friday 10 October 2014 Time:  1.30 pm 
 
Venue: Fire and Rescue Services HQ, Bestwood Lodge, Arnold Nottingham NG5 8PD 
 
 
Members are requested to attend the above meeting to be held at the time, place 
and date mentioned to transact the following business 
 

 
Clerk to the Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire and Rescue Authority 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Last meeting held on 11 July 2014 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 6 

4  HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 

7 - 14 

5  ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER POST  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 

15 - 22 

6  DISCRETIONS UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS 
SCHEME  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

23 - 46 

Public Document Pack



7  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
TO CONSIDER EXCLUDING THE PUBLIC FROM THE MEETING 
DURING CONSIDERATION OF THE REMAINING ITEM(S) IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100A(4) OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 ON THE BASIS THAT, HAVING REGARD 
TO ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES, THE PUBLIC INTEREST IN 
MAINTAINING THE EXEMPTION OUTWEIGHS THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST IN DISCLOSING THE INFORMATION 
 

 

8  REGRADING OF POSTS  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 

47 - 50 

 
 
 
ANY COUNCILLOR WHO IS UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND WISHES TO 
SUBMIT APOLOGIES SHOULD DO SO VIA THE PERSONAL ASSISTANT TO THE 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER AT FIRE SERVICES HEADQUARTERS ON 0115 967 0880 
 
IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ABOVE, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CONSTITUTIONAL SERVICES OFFICER SHOWN ON THIS 
AGENDA, IF POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING.  
 
Constitutional Services Officer:  Carol M Jackson  
 0115 8764297 
 carol.jackson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 

 



 

1 

 
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE & CITY OF NOTTINGHAM FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY - 
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Fire and Rescue Services HQ, Bestwood 
Lodge, Arnold, Nottingham NG5 8PD on 11 July 2014 from 1.30 pm to 2.15 pm 
 
 Councillor Michael Payne    (Chair)  
 Councillor Eunice Campbell  
 Councillor Ian Campbell  
 Councillor Stephen Garner  
 Councillor Liz Yates  
 Councillor Brian Grocock     (as substitute for Councillor Eunice Campbell)  
 
 indicates present at meeting  
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
John Buckley - Chief Fire Officer 
Carol Jackson - Constitutional Services Officer 
 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Eunice Campbell 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None 
 
3 MINUTES 

 
The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2014 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
4 HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his quarterly report updating 
members on human resources issues within the Service. The following statistics were 
drawn to members’ attention: 
 

 the average absence per employee has fallen from 6.39 days to 5.8 days for the 
period 2013/14; 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Nottinghamshire & City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue  Authority - Human Resources - 
11.04.14 

2 

 560 employees had no sickness absence  at all during 2013/14; 
 

 target absence figures for 2014/15 will remain the same as for 2013/14; whole 
time and control 6 days; non-uniformed 7 days and whole workforce 6.25 days; 

 

 as at 31 March 2014, whole-time establishment stood at 536 full time equivalent 
employees against an establishment of 530 posts; 

 

 fire-fighter roles are over-strength by 19 posts with 14 vacancies at supervisory 
level. The ‘front-loading’ of trainee fire-fighter roles is part of succession planning 
for projected retirements during 2014/15 and the promotion of competent fire-
fighters into vacant supervisory roles; 

 

 the Service ran an Area Manager selection process to fill vacancies at this level 
from July 2014. A Group Manager process will run in July  to fill the vacancies left 
by internal promotions; 

 

 there were no permanent ill-health retirements during 2013/14; 
 
Members congratulated the Chief Fire Officer, the Human Resources Team and 
Occupational Health for their considerable achievements in bringing down 
absenteeism levels over recent years. 
 
The Chair thanked the Chief Fire Officer for his clear and concise updating report. 
 
RESOLVED to endorse the report. 
 
5 POST DELATIONS 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his report recommending the deletion 
of three substantive posts from the support establishment. 
 
RESOLVED that the vacant posts set out in the report are recommended to the 
meeting of the Fire Authority to be held on 26 September 2014 for deletion. 
 
6  REVIEW OF WORKFORCE PLAN 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his report reviewing the Corporate 
Workforce Plan for 2013/14, setting out areas for action and making members aware 
of the updated Plan for 2014/16 and the key workforce issues contained in it. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
7 OUTCOMES OF THE EQUAL PAY REVIEW 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his report updating members on the 
outcomes and recommendations from the Equal Pay Review undertaken in 2013. 
 
RESOLVED to note the outcomes of the Equal Pay Review 2013. 
 
 

Page 4



Nottinghamshire & City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue  Authority - Human Resources - 
11.04.14 

3 

 
8 REGRADING OF POSTS 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his report notifying members that 
there were no applications considered by the Job Evaluation Panel in respect of 
changes to the permanent non-uniformed establishment, during the period April to 
June 2014 (inclusive). 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(1)   to note the report; 
 
(2)   only to receive future reports where the Job Evaluation Panel has 

considered any submission for regrading. 
 
9 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 
The Committee decided to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining agenda item in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on that basis that, having regard to all the circumstances, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information. 
 
10 VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY APPLICATION 

 
John Buckley, the Chief Fire Officer, introduced his report outlining the 
recommendations of the Discretionary Compensation Payments Board in respect of a 
voluntary redundancy application. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the recommendations of the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board to accept the application for voluntary 
redundancy set out in the report. 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham 
Fire and Rescue Authority  
Human Resources Committee 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE  
 

Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 
 

 
 
  
Date: 10 October 2014 
  
Purpose of Report: 

 
To update Members on Human Resources issues within the Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Name : 
Craig Parkin 
Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Tel : 0115 967 0880 

Email : craig.parkin@notts-fire.gov.uk  

Media Enquiries 
Contact : 

Bridget Aherne 
0115 967 0880    bridget.aherne@notts-fire.gov.uk 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 As part of its remit, the Human Resources Committee of Nottinghamshire and 

City of Nottingham Fire and Rescue Authority receives regular updates on 
Human Resources (HR) issues within the Service.  This includes issues such 
as sickness absence, formal discipline, grievance, health and safety, 
employment tribunal cases and staffing numbers.  These issues are known as 
HR metrics. 

 
1.2 Reports are on a quarterly basis and allow the Human Resources Committee 

to analyse ongoing issues and offer their guidance and scrutiny where 
applicable.  

 

2. REPORT 

 
HR METRICS - SICKNESS ABSENCE 

 
2.1 The following represents absence figures for Quarter 1: 1 April to 30 June 

2014.    
 

 

 
 

Absence Quarter 1 
1 Apr – 

30 Jun 2014 

Compared with 
previous quarter 

Compared with 
same quarter of 

2013 

Cumulative 
total days 

lost for 14/15 

Cumulative 
average over 

last 12 
months 

 
Total workforce 
(156 employees 
have been absent 
during Q1) 

 
1404.5 days lost 
 
1.94 days per 
employee 
 

 
1254 days lost 
 
1.71 days per 
employee 
 
12% increase 
(+150.5 days) 

 
1090days lost 
 
1.5 days per 
employee 
 
29% increase 
(+314.5 days) 

 
1404.5days 
lost 
 
1.94 days per 
employee 
 

 
6.23 days per 
employee 

 
Uniformed   
(102 employees 
have been absent 
during Q1) 
excluding retained 

 
 879 days lost 
 
1.57 days per 
employee 

 
904.5 days lost 
 
1.59 days 
per employee 
 
2.8% decrease 
(-25.5 days) 

 
 667.5 days lost 
 
1.18 days per 
employee 
 
31.7% increase 
(+ 211.5days) 

 
879 days lost 
 
1.57 days per 
employee 

 
5.44 days per 
employee 

 
Non uniformed 
(54 employees 
have been absent 
during Q1) 
 

 
525.5 days lost 
 
3.19 days per 
employee 
 

 
349.5 days lost 
 
 
2.1 days per 
employee 
 
50.45% increase 
(+176 days) 

 
 422.5 days lost 
 
 
2.7 days per 
employee 
 
24.4% increase 
(+103 days) 

 
525.5 days 
lost 
 
3.19 days per 
employee 

 
8.92 days per 
employee 

Long term 
sickness 
(defined as 28 
days or more) 

Total Workforce 35 

Uniformed (excluding retained) 25 

Non Uniformed 10 

Page 8



2.2 Absence rates have increased by 12% (150.5 days) across the workforce as a 
whole during Quarter 1, compared to the previous quarter and by 29% 
compared to the same quarter of 2013.  The average absence for the period 
was 1.94 days per employee, which is above the target of 1.56 days.  This is 
primarily accounted for by an increase in non-uniformed sickness absence. 

 
2.3 In reviewing the reason for this increase for non uniformed employees, 70% of 

absence was long-term in nature i.e. for a period of longer than 28 days, and 
related to significant medical issues.  As an indication of the types of conditions 
recorded, 136 days were lost due to surgery, 119 to stress/anxiety and 51 to 
musculo-skeletal conditions.   
 

2.4 There were 56 separate periods of medically certified absence in Quarter 1.  Of 
these, 31 employees have subsequently returned to work or left the service.  
The graphs attached as Appendix 1 give a clearer idea of how absence has 
been affected over a longer period of time and sets out a more representative 
view of absence over the year. 
 

2.5 In terms of reasons for absence, the majority of sickness absence during Q1 
(in terms of working time lost) was certified as due to lower limb or back 
conditions (uniformed), anxiety/depression or Upper Limb conditions (Control) 
and anxiety/depression or reproductive conditions (non- uniformed). 

 
2.6 The 2013 Chief Fire Officers Association absence survey showed that mental 

illness is the main cause of sickness absence for all staff categories in the 31 
Fire and Rescue Services surveyed.  This is reflected in absence at 
Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service for non-uniformed and Control 
employees, but not for Wholetime absence where lower limb and back injuries 
are the main causes of absence from work.  

  
2.10 Target absence figures for 2014/15 will remain the same as for 2013-14:  
 
 Wholetime & Control:   6 days 
 Non-Uniformed:            7 days 

 Whole Workforce:         6.25 days* 
 (* the average is affected by the numbers of employees in each work group)  

 
DISCIPLINE, GRIEVANCES ETC 

 
2.11 Over the period 1 April 2014 – 30 June 2014: 

 Disciplinary:  2 

 Grievances:  1 
Harassment and Bullying: 0 
Formal Management Sickness Absence Policy:  0 
Dismissals including ill health retirements:  1 

 Redundancy:   2 

 Redeployment: 0 

 Employment Tribunal cases: 0 

 IDRP appeals: 0 
 
 

Page 9



STAFFING NUMBERS 
 

2.12 During the period 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014, 7 employees commenced 
employment.  Establishment levels at 30 June 2014 are highlighted below: 

 

 Approved Actual Variance 

Wholetime 
531 

 
531 
(530.5 full time equivalents) 

 0 (-0.5 FTE) 

Retained 204 units 
256 persons (137.5 units) 
(includes 60 dual contracts) 

- 66.5 units 

Non-Uniformed 
183 

(166.49 fte 

176 
Established Post – 165 (157.18 fte) 
Fixed Term Non-Established Post –2 
Fixed Term in Established Post - 5 
Agency staff – 3 

 

-7 

Fire Control 

 
26 

 
 

 26  (25 FTE) 
 

-1 

 
2.13 There have been 19 leavers and 7 starters since the last report which has 

resulted in an actual workforce figure of 989 employees.  Leavers are broken 
down as follows:  5 whole-time, 8 retained, 1 control and 5 non-uniformed 
employees.   

 
Additionally, the Service employs 2 Apprentices on one year fixed-term 
contracts (2 have obtained permanent employment since the last review), and 
36 Contingency Crew Operatives on zero hour contracts.   

 
2.14 As at 30 June 2014 whole-time establishment stood at -0.5 FTE (530.5 FTE) 

employees against an establishment of 531 posts.   
 
2.15 Fire-fighter roles are over-strength by 6 posts, with 14 vacancies at 

Supervisory level.  A Crew Manager selection process will be run in early 
November to address the gap in Supervisory Manager roles.  This will reduce 
the over-establishment of Fire-fighters.   

 
2.16 It should be noted that the outcome of the operational cover proposals will 

lead to a reduction in whole-time established posts and the anticipated 
redeployment of some “at risk” Retained Duty System (RDS) employees to the 
whole-time duty system.  At this point it is anticipated that the number of 
whole-time employees will exceed the establishment for a short period, 
however this will provide some resilience against anticipated retirements 
during the remainder of 2014/15.      

 
2.16 During the last quarter, the Service ran a Group Manager selection process 

which filled two vacancies at this level (both were internal appointments).  

Page 10



 
2.17 The Service has completed a RDS recruitment process and 11 trainees 

commenced training at Service Development Centre (SDC) in September.  A 
further recruitment process will commence in October which will target the 
stations who are currently under establishment. 

   
2.18 The Service has also recruited a further 19 contingency operatives who have 

now received initial training.    
 
2.19 During the period the Service has appointed to two whole-time positions, 3 

retained positions (dual employment) and 2 support roles (non uniformed 
posts).   
 

ILL HEALTH RETIREMENTS 
 

2.20 There were two whole-time retirements on the grounds of permanent ill-health 
during Q1 of 2014-15.  These are the first for a number of years, and mean  
the Authority has exceeded its target of 1 ill-health retirement per year. 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
Pay budgets are projected to underspend this year, mainly as a result of the 
management of vacancies in the establishment from the start of the year until now 
(see paragraph 2.12). An updated position on this pay budget is reported quarterly to 
the Finance and Resources Committee. 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  
IMPLICATIONS 

 
The human resources implications are set out in the report, and there are no learning 
and development implications. 
 

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
As this review does not impact upon policy or service function, no equality impact has 
been undertaken. 
 

6.      CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 

7.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Page 11



 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
A regular reporting system on the management of HR ensures that the Service and 
the Authority are aware of any developing workforce issues. 
   

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Members endorse the report. 

 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR INSPECTION (OTHER THAN PUBLISHED 
DOCUMENTS) 

 
None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Buckley 

CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 

Page 12



BREAKDOWN OF ABSENCE Q1 (Apr - Jun 14)

Apr May Jun SUMMARY OF QUARTER 1

WORK GROUP Average Total April % Average Total May % Average Total June % Average Total Q1 % 

(days per work days 2013 difference (days per work days 2013 difference (days per work days 2013 difference (days per work days 2014-15 difference

person) lost days lost person) lost days lost person) lost days lost person) lost days lost

UNIFORMED 0.42 235 231 -1.73 0.54 303 258 -17.44 0.61 340 178.5 -90.48 1.54 878 667.5 -31.54

(inc Control)

NON UNIFORMED 1.29 213 159 -33.96 0.88 144 140.5 -2.49 1.02 168.5 116 -45.26 3.15 525.5 415.5 -26.47

TOTAL WORKFORCE 0.61 448 390 -14.87 0.61 447 398.5 -12.17 0.69 508.5 294.5 -72.67 1.91 1403.5 1083 -29.59

 

      

UNIFORMED ABSENCE NON UNIFORMED ABSENCE

TOTAL ABSENCE

0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

1
1.2
1.4
1.6
1.8

Q1 2011-12 Q2 2011-12 Q3 - 2011-
12

Q4 - 2011-
12

Q1 - 2012-
13

Q2 - 2012-
13

Q3 - 2012-
13

Q4 - 2012-
13

Q1  2013-
14

Q2 2013-14 Q3 2013-14 Q4 2013-14 Q1 2014-15

Sickness Absence Period 

Sickness Absence - uniformed employees 

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

Q1 2011-
12

Q2 2011-
12

Q3 - 2011-
12

Q4 - 2011-
12

Q1 - 2012-
13

Q2 - 2012-
13

Q3 - 2012-
13

Q4 - 2012-
13

Q1 - 2013-
14

Q2 - 2013-
14

Q3 - 2013-
14

Q4 2013-
14

Q1 - 2014-
15

Sickness Absence Period 

Sickness Absence - non uniformed employes 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Q1 2011-
12

Q2 2011-
12

Q3 - 2011-
12

Q4 - 2011-
12

Q1 - 2012-
13

Q2 - 2012-
13

Q3 - 2012-
13

Q4 - 2012-
13

Q1 - 2013-
14

Q2 - 2013-
14

Q3- 2013-
14

Q4 2013-
14

Q1 2014-
15

Sickness Absence Period 

Sickness Absence - whole workforce 
 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham 
Fire and Rescue Authority 
Human Resources Committee 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF 
COMMUNICATION OFFICER 
POST 
 

Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 
 

  
Date: 10 October 2014 
  
Purpose of Report:  
 
To seek approval for the establishment of a Communication Officer post within the 
Corporate Communications and Administration team. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Name : 
Craig Parkin 
Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Tel : 0115 967 0880 

Email : craig.parkin@notts-fire.gov.uk 

 
Media Enquiries 
Contact : 

Bridget Aherne 
(0115) 967 0880  bridget.aherne@notts-fire.gov.uk 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:bridget.aherne@notts-fire.gov.uk


 

1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The Corporate Communications team provides support to the Authority in all 

matters regarding marketing and communications, internal communications, 
press and media handling, digital and social media engagement and provision 
of materials to support Prevention activities.  
 

1.2 As part of the last structural review, the Head of Communications role was 
extended to include the management of the Corporate Administration team as 
well as Corporate Communications, which has widened the scope and 
demands upon the role. 

 
1.3 The  role played by  media and communications will be key to ensuring positive 

interaction and information sharing with both the public and service employees  
over future changes to the Service, this is particularly important at a time when 
the Services is facing financial constraints. 

 

2. REPORT 

 
2.1 The role of the Communications team has evolved rapidly in recent years with 

the development of the Service internet and intranet, and the growing use of 
web-based tools such as social media to convey messages, warn and inform 
(Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, etc) and engaging the communities we serve in 
our work.  
 

2.2 These are important means of conveying information to and engaging with 
employees and service users. The Service currently has 7,208 Twitter followers 
and this is increasing.   The recent incident at Nottingham University is an 
illustration of how effectively an integrated multi-media strategy can work, with 
25,000 accessing the Service’s Facebook page and a million Twitter users 
sharing the information.     
 

2.3 This has meant that the skills and resources needed to advise Nottinghamshire 
Fire & Rescue Service how to use these channels, as well as manage them, 
has significantly diversified and increased at a time when traditional forms of 
communications such as staff briefing papers, media enquiries and pro-active 
press releases need to be maintained. 

 
2.4 The current Communications team comprises of the Head of Corporate 

Communications and Administration and a Communications Manager.   
 
2.5 In order to address issue of growing demand, it is proposed that a new role of 

Communications Officer be established to deal with day-to-day activity. The job 
description and person specification are attached for information. 

 
2.6 It is anticipated that this role may attract applicants at the beginning of their 

career, with sound social media skills and experience as well as a grounding in 

Page 16



more traditional skills. The role has been subject to job evaluation which has 
recommended a Grade 3 appointment. 

 
2.7 In addition, the Corporate Communications team is in the process of 

establishing an out-of-hours provision for media enquiries and this post would 
contribute to this once established in role. 

 
2.8 Whilst this would be a new post, the Corporate Administration team has already 

reduced its establishment by 3.5 posts (grade 3) through efficiencies arising 
from the re-structure process. These savings have formed part of budget 
reduction measures already implemented and reported to this Committee at its 
meeting on 11 July 2014 .   

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
The cost of this new post would be £20,736 per annum, rising to £23,674 per annum 
through incremental progression.  The budget for this post was included in the 
2014/15 budget in anticipation of this proposal and funded from the savings from the 
deletion of 3.5 fte posts 
 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  
IMPLICATIONS 

 
The human resources implications are contained within the report. 
 

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
An equality impact assessment has not been undertaken because there are no policy 
or service delivery implications.  The recruitment process will adhere to the Service’s 
recruitment policy. 
 

6.      CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 

7.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no legal implications arising from this report.. 
 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
The value of maintaining effective and pro-active media services is central to 
maintaining good relations with the media, employees and service users.  The 
growing demand for information and the ability to respond quickly to this demand 

Page 17



may be at risk if the Service does not adequately resource its Corporate 
Communications function, and could impact upon the reputation of the organisation. 

 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Members support the establishment of a new post of Communications Officer 
and recommend this to the Combined Fire Authority. 

 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR INSPECTION (OTHER THAN PUBLISHED 
DOCUMENTS) 

 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Buckley 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 
 
 

Page 18



NOTTINGHAMSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
 
Post:  Communications Officer, 
 
Grade:    Grade 3 
 
Post Reference:   XXXXX 
 
Conditions of Service:  NJC for Local Government Services  
    National Scheme of Conditions of Service  
 
Responsible to:   Communications Manager 
 
Responsible for:  None  
 
 
General Description of Post  
 
Effective communications will play a key role in fulfilling the organisation’s aims and 
ambitions. The role of Communications Officer supports the running of Corporate 
Communications department and delivers first class external and internal 
communications including proactive and reactive media relations, internal and 
external publications and online communications. 
 
Specific Duties  
 

Communications 
 
1.1 To assist the Communications Manager in the delivery of the 

organisation’s corporate communications strategy. 
 

1.2 To deliver proactive and reactive media relations service including 
researching and writing press releases, dealing with media enquiries 
and writing copy for a range of print and online publications / platforms. 

 
1.3 To deal with communications relating to incidents, including providing 

live incident updates to the media and the public via social media, the 
website and other channels as required. 

 
1.4 To assist in the on-going management and development NFRS’ 

Facebook page and other social media channels including Twitter. 
 

1.5 To take part in an out of hours media rota. 
 

1.6 To assist with the production of internal and external publications. 
 

Page 19



1.7 To assist with the provision of an internal communications service 
including electronic briefings, staff briefing papers, supporting employee 
events and writing for and updating the intranet / staff newsletter. 

 
1.8 To assist with a range of communications projects, from planning 

through to delivery. 
 
1.9 To assist with press conferences and launches as and when required. 
 
1.10 To represent the organisation at internal and external events, functions 

and meetings as required. 
 
1.11 To undertake any other duties which may be reasonably regarded as 

within the nature of the duties, responsibilities and grade of the post.  
 
Support 

 
1.12 To provide general support for the communications team including 

media monitoring, distribution and evaluation. 
 
1.13 To maintain and keep up-to-date the department’s systems and 

databases, including the media management database. 
 

1.14 To ensure that all work takes account of the current legislation relating 
to the media and local government publicity, as well as Service policies 
and protocols. 

 
General 

 
(a) Health and Safety 
To take reasonable care for your own health and safety and work and that of 
other persons who may be affected by your work activities. 

  
To co-operate with Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue’s attempts to comply with 
health and safety legislation. Where appropriate you must safeguard the 
health and safety of all persons affected by the work activities you supervise at 
any premises you have control over. 

  
To work in a safe manner in which you have been trained and instructed and 
advise your line manager of any health and safety problems you become of 
aware of. 

  
To familiarise yourself with the contents of the Service’s Written Safety Policy. 

  
To wear personal protective equipment supplied to you by the Service in the 
manner in which you have been instructed to do so. 

  
 
 
 

Page 20



(b) Use of equipment and other appliances 
To take proper care in the handling, operation and safeguarding of any 
equipment, vehicles or appliance, used or issued by the Service or provided or 
issued by a third party for individual or collective use in the performance of the 
job holder’s duties 

  
 (c) Equalities 

To uphold the Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service’s Fairness at Work 
and Equal Opportunities policies and practices and to treat all colleagues, 
service users and contacts with respect and in accordance with the 
expectations laid down by the Service. 

  
To promote and deliver fair and quality services that are sensitive and 
responsive to all service users. 

  
(d) Code of Conduct 
To adhere to the standards of the Code of Conduct established by the 
Service. 

  
(e) Personal Development 
To keep up to date with current practice, undertake training and Continuous 
Professional Development as appropriate. 

  
(f) Information Technology 
To comply with security measures to protect against unauthorised access to, 
alteration or disclosure of information held on computer and ensure adherence 
to the principles of the Data Protection Act. 

  
To undertake any training and operation of new technologies and associated 
systems as required. 
 
 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham 
Fire and Rescue Authority 
Human Resources Committee 
 

DISCRETIONS UNDER THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
PENSIONS SCHEME 
 

Report of the Chief Fire Officer      
 
 

  
Date: 10 October 2014 
  
Purpose of Report: 

 
To seek Member approval on the Service policy statement in relation to the 
discretions that exist under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 

 

Name : 
Craig Parkin 
Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Tel : 0115 9670880 

Email : craig.parkin@notts-fire.gov.uk 

Media Enquiries 
Contact : 

Bridget Aherne 
(0115) 967 5830  bridget.aherne@notts-fire.gov.uk 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

mailto:bridget.aherne@notts-fire.gov.uk


 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme there are a number of specific 
discretions which can be exercised by the employer. 

 
1.2 These are detailed within the relevant Local Government Pensions Scheme 

Regulations. 
 
1.3 Members previously approved discretions under the Local Government 

Pension Scheme at the HR Committee meeting dated 27 January 2012. 
 
1.4 The Service has reviewed the existing policy on employer discretions following 

recent changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme in April 2014. 
 

2. REPORT 

 
2.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations employers are 

required to provide a statement outlining how discretions will be exercised by 
the employer.  

 
2.2 Appendix A sets out Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service’s statement of 

policy in relation to the application of employer discretions under the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 

  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
For a number of the discretions set out in Appendix A, the implication of allowing or 
not allowing that discretion is generally that the financial position of the Authority is 
protected.  Where it is proposed that discretions are allowed, the financial 
implications cannot be estimated because in each case this may depend on factors 
such as age and length of service of the employee as well as actuarial assumptions 
about the pension fund.  In some cases, the choice of whether or not to exercise the 
discretion will be made by either the Service Discretionary Compensation Payments 
Board or by a Principal Officer, and the financial implications of exercising these 
particular discretions will be clear at the time the decisions are made. 
 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  
IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 Under the Local Government Pensions Scheme Regulations, the 

Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service is required to provide a statement of 
its policy towards the application of employer discretions. 

 
4.2 The Human Resources Department will be responsible for ensuring that the 

discretions are applied in line with the approved policy. 

Page 24



 

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
An equality impact assessment has not been undertaken as the discretions do not 
disproportionately affect one particular group of employees. 
 

6.      CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 
 

7.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
The Service is required to comply with the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations. 
 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
Failure to comply and implement pension scheme regulations would lead to potential 
challenge by the Pensions Ombudsman. 

 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Members approve the attached Service policy statement regarding application 
of employer discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR INSPECTION (OTHER THAN PUBLISHED 
DOCUMENTS) 

 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Buckley 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 
 
 

Page 25



DISCRETIONS UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME       APPENDIX A 
 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations Policy Statement 
 
Discretions from 01.04.14 in relation to post 31.03.14 active members (excluding councillor members) and post 31.3.14 leavers 
(excluding councillor members) being discretions under: 
 

 the local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (prefix R) 

 the local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (prefix TP) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (prefix A) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme(Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as amended) (prefix B) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008 (prefix T) 

 he Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) (prefix L) 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

Determine rates of employees’ 
contributions 

R9(1)&R9(3) Yes To be reviewed on monthly basis 

Whether, how much, and in what 
circumstances to contribute to a shared 
APC scheme 

R16(2)(e) & R16(4) (d)* No  

Whether, how much, and in what 
circumstances to continue to contribute to 
a shared cost AVC arrangement entered 
into on or after 1/4/14 
 
 
 

TP15(1)(d) &A25(3) No The Authority  will not contribute towards 
the shared costs of an AVC scheme 

Whether, how much, and in what 
circumstances to continue to contribute to 
a shared cost AVC arrangement entered 
into before 1/4/14 

R17 (1) & definition of 
SCAVC in RSch1 

No The Authority  will not contribute towards 
the shared costs of an AVC scheme 

Allow late application to convert scheme 
AVC’s into membership credit ie allow 
application more than 30 days after 

TP15(1)(b) & L66(8) & 
former L66 (9)(b) 

Yes on a case by case 
basis 

The Director of Finance and Resources to 
consider each case on an individual basis 
 

P
age 26



cessation of active membership (where 
AVC arrangement was entered into before 
13/11/01) 

No right to return of contributions if 
member left due to offence of a fraudulent 
character or grave misconduct unless 
employer directs a total or partial refund is 
to be made 

R19 (2) Yes There will be no right to return contributions 
in these circumstances 

Specify in an employee’s contract what 
other payments or benefits, other than 
those specified in R20(1) (a) and not 
otherwise precluded by R20(2), are to be 
pensionable 

R20(1)(b) No NFRS do not specify which pension 
payments or benefits may be pensionable 
within the employment contract 

Whether to extend the 12 month option 
period for a member to elect that deferred 
benefits should not be aggregated with a 
new employment 

R22(8)(b) No Employees with more than 12 months 
service must include previous service for 
aggregation of deferred benefits 

Whether to extend the 12 month option 
period for a member to elect that deferred 
benefits should not be aggregated with a 
new employment 

R22(7)(b) No Employees with more than 12 months 
service must include previous service for 
aggregation of deferred benefits 

Whether all or some benefits can be paid 
if an employee reduces their hours or 
grade (flexible retirement) 
 

R30 & TP11(2) Yes In line with Service flexible retirement policy 

Whether to waive, in whole or in part, 
actuarial reduction on benefits paid on 
flexible retirement 

R30(8)* Yes (in exceptional 
circumstances) 

It is the general policy of the Authority not 
to waive the actuarial reduction unless 
exceptional circumstances apply.  The 
Discretionary Compensation Payments 
Board will give consideration to such 
exceptional circumstances.  In general, 
such a waiver would only be enacted where 
it would be at least cost neutral to the 
Authority or in the interests of the Authority.  
Refer flexible retirement policy 

P
age 27



Whether to waive, in whole or in part, 
actuarial reduction on benefits which a 
member voluntarily draws before normal 
pension age 

R30(8)* No  

Whether to ‘switch on’ the 85 year rule for 
a member voluntarily drawing benefits on 
or after age 55 and before age 60 

TPSch 2, paras 1(2) and 
2(2) 

Yes  
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 
 

Whether to waive any actuarial reduction 
on pre and/or post April 2014 benefits 

TP3(1), TPSch 2, paras 
2(1) and 2(2), B30(5) and 
B30A(5) 

Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 

Whether to grant additional pension to an 
active member or within 6 months of 
ceasing to be an active member by 
reason of redundancy or business 
efficiency (by up to £6,500 pa) 

R31* Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Whether to use a certificate produced by 
an IRMP under the 2008 scheme for the 
purposes of making an ill health 
determination under the 2014 scheme 
 

TP12(6) Yes Consideration by Principal Officer 

Decide whether deferred beneficiary 
meets criteria of being permanently 
incapable of former job because of ill 
health and is unlikely to be capable of 
undertaking gainful employment before 
normal pension age or for at least three 
years, whichever is the sooner 

R38(3) Yes Applications from deferred beneficiary 
would be considered to establish whether 
they met permanent ill health criteria 
 
Consideration by Principal Officer 

Decide whether a suspended ill health tier 
3 member is unlikely to be capable of 
undertaking gainful employment before 
normal pension age because of ill health 

R38(6) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 

Whether to extend six month period to 
lodge a stage one IDRP appeal 

R74(4)  Consideration by the Service Pensions 
Adjudicator 

Whether to apply to Secretary of State for 
a forfeiture certificate (where member is 

R91(1) & (8) Yes The Service would apply for a certificate in 
these circumstances 

P
age 28



convicted of a relevant offence) 

Where forfeiture certificate is issued, 
whether to direct that benefits are to be 
forfeited (other than rights to GMP – but 
see R95 below) 

R91(4) Yes The Service would direct that benefits are 
forfeited 
 

Where forfeiture certificate is issued, 
whether to direct interim payments out of 
Pension Fund until decision is taken to 
either apply the certificate or pay benefits 
 
 
 
 
 

R92(1) & (2) Yes The Service would direct interim payments 
out of the pension fund in this circumstance 

Whether to recover from Fund any 
monetary obligation, or, if less, the value 
of the member’s benefits (other than 
benefits from transferred in pension rights 
or APCs or AVCs or, subject to R95 
below, in respect of any GMP) where the 
obligation was incurred as a result of a 
grave misconduct or a criminal, negligent 
or fraudulent act or omission in connection 
with the employment and as a result of 
which the person has left employment 

R93(2) Yes The Service would recover from any 
monetary obligation incurred in these 
circumstances 

Whether, if the member has committed 
treason or been imprisoned for at least 10 
years for one or more offences under the 
Official Secrets Acts, forfeiture under R91 
or recovery of a monetary obligation under 
R93 should deprive the member or the 
member’s surviving spouse or civil partner 
of any GMP entitlement 

R95 Yes  
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 

Agree to bulk transfer payment R98(1)(b) Yes  

Extend normal time limit for acceptance of R100(68) Yes  Consideration by Director of Finance and 

P
age 29



a transfer value beyond 12 months from 
joining the LGPS 

Case by case basis Resources 
 

Whether to allow a member to select final 
pay period for fees to be any 3 
consecutive years ending 31st march in 
the 10 years prior to leaving 

TP3(6), TP(6)(c), 
TP8(4),TP10(2)(a), 
TP17(2)(b) &B11(2) 

Yes  Where an employee’s pensionable pay 
includes an element of variable fees then 
the employer may allow averaging of these 
fees to be used to calculate pension  

 
* These matters about which the regulations require there must be a written policy 
Discretions in relation to scheme members (excluding councillor members) who ceased active membership on or after 1.04.08 and 
before 1.1.14 being discretions under: 
 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (prefix A) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as amended) (prefix B) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008 (prefix T) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) Regulations 2014 (prefix TP) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (prefix R) 

 he Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) (prefix L) 
 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

Whether, for a member leaving on the 
grounds of efficiency of redundancy or 
business efficiency on or before 31 march 
2014, to augment membership (by up to 
10 years).  The resolution to do so would 
have to be made within 6 months of the 
date of leaving.  Hence this discretion is 
spent entirely after 30 September 2014. 

B12* Refer NFRS 
discretionary 
compensation payments 
scheme 

This allows the Authority to increase 
pension membership by up to 10 years in 
special circumstances  
At discretion of Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Allow late application to convert scheme 
AVC’s into membership credit ie allow 
application more than 30 days after 
cessation of active membership 

TSCh1 7L66 (8) & former 
L66 (9)(b) 

Yes  
Case by case basis 

The service will consider each case on an 
individual basis 
Report to be submitted to Head of Human 
Resources 

No right to return of contributions due to 
offence of a fraudulent character or grave 

A47(2) Yes There will be no right to return contributions 
in these circumstances 

P
age 30



misconduct unless employer directs a 
total or partial refund is to be made 

Contribution of equivalent premium (CEP) 
in excess of the certified amount (CA) 
recovered from a refund of contributions 
can be recovered from the Pension Fund 

A49(1) & (2) Yes This means that if an employee transfers 
out into a non-contracted out scheme the 
employer, if required to make a refund to 
the employee, must deduct a Certified 
Amount.  If this amount exceeds the value 
of the refund this discretion allows the 
employer to take the balance from the fund. 

Whether to extend six month period to 
lodge a stage One IDRP appeal 

A58(7) (b)  Consideration by the Service Pension 
Adjudicator 

Whether to apply to Secretary of State for 
a forfeiture certificate (where member is 
convicted of a relevant offence) 

A72(1) & (6) Yes The Service would apply for a certificate in 
these circumstances 

Where forfeiture certificate is issued, 
whether to direct that benefits are forfeited 

A72(3) Yes The Service would direct that benefits are 
forfeited in these circumstances 

Where forfeiture certificate is issued, 
whether to direct interim payments out of 
Pension Fund until decision is taken to 
either apply the certificate or to pay 
benefits  

A73(1) & (2) Yes The Service would direct interim payments 
out of the pension fund in this circumstance 

Whether to recover from Fund any 
monetary obligation or, if less, the value of 
the member’s benefits (other than 
transferred in pension rights or 
AVC’s/SCAVC’s) where the obligation 
was incurred as a result of a criminal, 
negligent or fraudulent act or omission in 
connection with the employment and as a 
result of which the person has left 
employment 
 

A74(2) Yes The Service would recover from the fund 
any monetary obligation incurred in these 
circumstances 

Whether to recover from Fund any 
financial loss caused by fraudulent 
offence or grave misconduct of employee 

A76(2) & (3) Yes The Service would recover from the fund to 
cover any financial loss 

P
age 31



(who has left because of that), or amount 
of refund if less 

Whether to allow a member to select final 
pay period for fees to be any 3 
consecutive years ending 31st March in 
the 10 years prior to leaving 

B11 (2) Yes Where an employee’s pensionable pay 
includes an element of variable fees then 
the employer may allow an averaging of 
these fees to be used to calculate pension 

Whether to grant application for early 
payment of deferred benefits on or after 
age 55 and before age 60 

B30(2)* Yes  
Case by case basis 

Under the provisions of the Service 
Discretionary Compensation Payments 
Scheme 
Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation payments Board   

Whether to waive, on compassionate, 
grounds the actuarial reduction applied to 
deferred benefits paid early under B30 

B30(5)* Yes in exceptional 
circumstances 

Each case to be considered by the 
Discretionary Compensation Payments 
Board 

Whether to grant an application for early 
payment of a suspended tier 3 ill health 
pension on or after age 55 and before age 
60 

B30A(3)* Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 

Whether to waive, on compassionate 
grounds, the actuarial reduction applied to 
benefits paid early under B30A 

B30A(5)* Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Principal Officer 

Decide whether deferred beneficiary 
meets permanent ill health and reduced 
likelihood of gainful employment criteria 
 
 

B31(4) Yes Applications from deferred beneficiary 
would be considered to establish whether 
they met permanent ill health criteria. 
 
Consideration by Principal Officer 

Decide whether a suspended ill health tier 
3 member is permanently incapable of 
undertaking any gainful employment 

B31(7) Yes Consideration by Principal Officer 

 
* These matters about which the regulations require there must be a written policy 
 
 
 
 

P
age 32



 
Discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) in relation to:  
 

 active councillor members, and 
 

 councillor members who ceased active membership on or after 1.4.98 
 

 any other scheme members who ceased active membership on or after 1.4.98 and before 1.4.08 
 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

Allow post 31.3.98 / pre 01.04.08 non –
councillor leaver to select final pay period 
for fees to be a period of not less than 3 or 
more than 5 years back from date of 
leaving 

22(1)(b) Yes  

Issue certificate of protection of pension 
benefits where eligible non councillor 
member fails to apply for one (pay cuts / 
restrictions occurring pre 1.04.08) 

23(4) Yes  

Grant application from a post 31.3.98/pre 
1.4.08 leaver or from a councillor for early 
payment of benefits on or after age 50/55 
and before age 60 (see Note below) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31(2)* Yes The service would consider applications on  
a case by case basis on compassionate 
grounds 
 
Consideration by Principal Officer 

Waive, on compassionate grounds, the 
actuarial reduction applied to benefits paid 
for a post 31.3.98/pre 01.04.08 leaver or a 
councillor leaver 

31(5)* Yes As above 

P
age 33



Councillor optants out and pre 01.04.08 
employee optants out only to get benefits 
paid from normal retirement date if 
employer agrees 

31(7A)* Yes  

Decide, in the absence from a post 
31.3.98 / pre 1.04.08 leaver of an election 
from the member within 3 months of being 
able to elect, which benefit is to be paid 
where the member would be entitled to a 
pension or retirement grant under 2 or 
more regulations in respect of the same 
period of scheme membership 

34(1)(b) Yes There are some circumstances under 
which two types of benefit can be payable 
form the fund.  It is common for employers 
to exercise this discretion but to make clear 
that it will be made in the interests of the 
authority and not the employee.  They will 
normally be notified and may appeal. 
 
Consideration by Principal Officer 

Consent to a member’s former employer 
assigning to the new employers rights 
under any SCAVC life assurance  policy 
(pre 01.04.08 non councillor leavers) 

71(7)(a) N/A This does not apply as the Service does 
not have a SCAVC life assurance policy. 

No right to return of contributions due to 
offence of a fraudulent character unless 
employer directs a total or partial refund is 
to be made (councillors and pre 1.4.08 
leavers) 
 
 
 
 
 

88(2) Yes Service to decide on return of contributions 
in these circumstances 
Report to be submitted to the Head of 
Human Resources. 

Contribution Equivalent Premium (CEP) in 
excess of the Certified Amount (CA) 
recovered from a refund of contributions 
can be recovered from the Pension Fund 
(councillor leavers and pre 01.04.08 
leavers) 
 
 

92 Yes This means that if an employee transfers 
out into a non-contracted out scheme the 
employer, if required to make a refund to 
the employee, must deduct a Certified 
Amount.  If this amount exceeds the value 
of the refund this discretion allows the 
employer to take the balance form the fund. 

P
age 34



Forfeiture of pension rights on issue of 
Secretary of State’s certificate (councillors 
and pre 1.4.08 leavers) 

111(2) &(5) Yes The Service will exercise its rights on issue 
of certificate 

Where forfeiture certificate is issued, 
direct interim payments out of Pension 
Fund until decision is taken to either apply 
the certificate or to pay benefits 
(councillors and pre 1.04.08 leavers) 

112(1) Yes The Service will direct interim payments out 
of pension fund in these circumstances 

Recovery from Fund of monetary 
obligation owed by former employee or, if 
less, the value of the member’s benefits 
(other than transferred in pension rights) 
(councillors and pre 1.4.08 leavers) 

113(2) 7 (3) Yes The Service will recover monetary 
obligation form the fund of the member in 
these circumstances 
 

Recovery from Fund of financial loss 
caused by employee, or amount of refund 
if less (councillors and pre 1.04.08 
leavers) 

115(2) & (3) Yes The service will recover financial losses 

 
 
 
* These matters about which the regulations require there must be a written policy 
 
NOTE: benefits paid on or after aged 50 and before age 55 are subject to an unauthorised payments charge and, where applicable, an 
unauthorised payments surcharge under the Finance Act 2006.  Also, any part of the benefits which had accrued after 5 April 2006 
would generate a scheme sanction charge.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



Discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1995 (as amended) in relation to scheme members who 
ceased active membership before 1.04.98 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

Grant application from a pre 1.4.98 leaver 
for early payment of deferred benefits on 
or after age 50 on compassionate grounds 
(see NOTE below) 

D11(2)(c) Yes  The Discretionary Compensation Payments 
Board will consider applications on a case 
by case basis 

Decide, in the absence from a pre1.4.98 
leaver of an election from the member 
within 3 months of being able to elect, 
which benefit is to be paid where the 
member would be entitled to a pension or 
retirement grant under 2 or more 
regulations in respect of the same period 
of Scheme membership 

D10 Yes There are some circumstances under 
which two types of benefit can be payable 
form the fund.  It is common for employers 
to exercise this discretion but to make clear 
that it will be made in the interests of the 
authority and not the employee.  They will 
normally be notified and may appeal. 
 
Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation payments Board. 
  

 
 
 
NOTE: benefits paid on or after aged 50 and before age 55 are subject to an unauthorised payments charge and, where applicable, an 
unauthorised payments surcharge under the Finance Act 2006.  Also, any part of the benefits which had accrued after 5 April 2006 
would generate a scheme sanction charge.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



Discretions under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2006 (as amended) 
 
Under Regulation 7 of the Discretionary Compensation Regulations, each Authority (other than and Admitted Body) is required to formulate and 
keep under review a policy which applies in respect of exercising their discretion in relation to: 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

To base redundancy payments on an 
actual weeks pay where this exceeds the 
statutory week’s pay limit 

5 Yes In line with the provisions of the Service 
Discretionary Payments Compensation 
Scheme. 
 
Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

To award lump sum compensation of up 
to 104 week’s pay in cases of 
redundancy, termination of employment 
on efficiency grounds, or cessation of a 
joint appointment 

6 Yes  
Case by case basis 

In line with the provisions of the Service’s 
compensation payments scheme 
 
Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation payments Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 37



Discretions under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)(England and Wales) 
Regulations 2000 (as amended) 
 
 
Under Regulation 26 of the Discretionary Compensation Regulations, each authority (other an Admitted Body) is required to formulate and keep 
under review a policy which applies in respect of exercising their discretion in relation to: 
 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process exercising 
discretion 

How to apportion any surviving spouses 
or civil partners annual compensatory 
added years payment where the 
deceased person is survived by more than 
one spouse or civil partner 

21(4) Yes Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

How it will decide to whom any children 
annual compensatory added years 
payments are to paid where children’s 
pensions are not payable under the LGPS 
(because the employee had not joined the 
LGPS) and, in such a case, how the 
annual added years will be apportioned  
amongst the eligible children 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25(2) Yes Consideration by the Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Whether, in respect of the spouse of a 
person who ceased employment before 1 
April 1198 and where the spouse or civil 
partner remarries, enters into a new civil 

21(7) Yes The annual compensatory added 
years payments will continue to be 
paid in these circumstances 

P
age 38



partnership or cohabits after 1 April 1998, 
the normal pension suspension rules 
should be dis-applied ie whether the 
spouse’s or civil partner’s annual 
compensatory added years payments 
should continue to be paid 

Whether, in respect of the spouse or civil 
partner of a person who ceased 
employment before 1 April 1998 and 
where the spouse or civil partner 
remarries or cohabits or enters into a civil 
partnership on or after 1 April 1998 with 
another person who is also entitled to a 
spouse’s or civil partners annual CAY 
payment, the normal rule requiring one of 
them to forego payment whilst the period 
of marriage, civil partnership or co-
habitation lasts, should be dis-applied ie 
whether the spouses’ or civil partners’ 
annual CAY payments should continue to 
be paid to both of them  
 
 

21(7) Yes The Service will not seek to remove 
pension from surviving partners 

Whether and to what extent to reduce or 
suspend the member’s annual 
compensatory added years payment 
during any period or re-employment in 
local government 

17 Yes Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board will determine 
whether and to what extent to reduce 
or suspend annual compensatory 
added years payments in these 
circumstances  

How to reduce the member’s annual 
compensatory added years payment 
following the cessation of a period of re-
employment in local government 

19 Yes The Service would take measures to 
re-introduce annual compensatory 
added years payments in these 
circumstances 

 
 

P
age 39



Discretions under the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) (Injury Allowances) Regulations 2011 
 
Under Regulation 14 of the Injury Allowances Regulations, each LGPS employer (other than an admitted Body) is required to formulate, publish 
and keep under review the policy that it will apply in the exercise of its discretionary powers to make any award under the Injury Allowances 
Regulations in respect of leavers, deaths and reductions in pay that occurred post 15 January 2012. 
 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process 
exercising discretion 

Whether to grant an injury 
allowance following reduction in 
remuneration as a result of 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease in the course of 
carrying out duties of the job 

3(1) Yes Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board.  
Annual review by DCPB. 

Amount of injury allowance 
following reduction in 
remuneration as a result of 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease in the course of 
carrying out duties of the job 

3(4) & 8 Yes Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board.  
Amount cannot be more than 
previous salary. 

Whether to grant an injury 
allowance following cessation of 
employment as a result of 
permanent incapacity caused by 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease in the course of 
carrying out duties of the job. 
 
 

4(1) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board.  
Capped at 85% of the amount of 
the previous salary and 
allowance. 

Amount of the injury allowance 
following cessation of 
employment as a result of 
permanent incapacity caused by 
sustaining an injury or contracting 

4(3) and 8 Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

P
age 40



a disease in the course of 
carrying out duties of the job. 

Whether to suspend or 
discontinue injury allowance 
awarded under Regulation 4(1) if 
person secures paid employment 
for not less than 30 hours per 
week for a period of not less than 
12 months 

4(5) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Whether to grant an injury 
allowance following cessation of 
employment with entitlement to 
immediate LGPS pension where a 
Reg 3 payment was being made 
at date of cessation of 
employment but Reg 4 does not 
apply  

6(1) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Determine amount of any injury 
allowance payable under 
regulation 6(1) 

6(1) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Determine whether and when to 
cease payment of an injury 
allowance payable under  
regulation 6(1) 
 
 
 

6(2) Yes  
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Whether to grant an injury 
allowance to the spouse, civil 
partner, nominated co-habiting 
partner or dependent of an 
employee who dies as a result of 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease in the course of 
carrying out duties of the job. 

7(1) Yes  
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

P
age 41



Determine amount of any injury 
allowance to be paid under 
regulation 7(1) 

7(2) & 8 Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

Determine whether and when to 
cease payment of an injury 
allowance payable under 
regulation 7 (1) 

7 (3) Yes 
Case by case basis 

Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



Discretions under the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996 (as amended) 
 
The following discretions under the Discretionary Payments Regulations: 

a) which relates to injury allowances, apply only in respect of leavers, deaths and reductions in pay that occurred before 16 January 2012; 
and 

b) which relate to gratuities, apply only in respect of leavers and deaths that occurred before 16 January 2012 
 
 

Discretion Regulation NFRS policy Explanation / process 
exercising discretion 

Amount of injury allowance 
following loss of employment 
through permanent incapacity 
after sustaining an injury or 
contracting a disease as a result 
of anything required to do in 
carrying out duties of job 

34(2) Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
payments Board  

 

Suspend or discontinue injury 
allowance if person becomes 
capable of working again 

34(4) Yes  The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would takes 
measures to suspend or 
discontinue injury allowance in 
these circumstances 

Amount of injury allowance 
following reduction in pay after 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease as result of anything 
required to do in carrying our 
duties of job 
 
 
 
 

35(3) & 38 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Amount and duration of injury 
allowance following cessation of 
employment where Reg 35 

36 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 

P
age 43



payment was being made but Reg 
34 does not apply 

any) in these circumstances 

Amount and duration of 
dependant’s spouse’s or civil 
partner’s injury allowance 
following death of employee after 
sustaining an injury or contracting 
a disease as a result of anything 
required to do in carrying out 
duties of job 

37(3), 37(6) & 38 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Reinstate spouse’s or civil 
partners injury allowance 
following earlier cessation due to 
cohabitation, remarriage or 
registration of a new civil 
partnership 

37(4) Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Amount of death in service 
gratuity payable to surviving 
dependant, spouse or civil partner 

40 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Amount of retirement gratuity 
payable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Amount of gratuity payable to 
surviving dependant, spouse or 
civil partner where amount of 
annuity payments fall short of 
their capital value at date of 
award 

41(4) Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

P
age 44



Amount if redundancy gratuity 
payable 

42 Yes The Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board would determine 
the level of injury allowance (if 
any) in these circumstances 

Amount of gratuity payable to 
surviving dependant, spouse or 
civil partner where amount of 
redundancy annuity payments fall 
short of their capital value at date 
of award 

42(4) Yes The discretion would allow a 
gratuity to be paid where an 
employee has been in the 
scheme for at least 5 years or if 
over 60 for 1 year.  This allows 
the Authority to exercise its 
discretion properly. 
 
Consideration by the 
Discretionary Compensation 
Payments Board 

Amount of gratuity payable to any 
other surviving dependant, 
spouse or civil partner where the 
amount annuity payments paid 
under 42(4) fall short of their 
capital value at date of award 

42(7) Yes Consideration by Discretionary 
Compensation Payments Board 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE
	FINAL_HR Update
	Copy of Absence breakdown for HR Committee with graphs Q1 2014-15 (Sept 14)

	5 ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER POST
	6 DISCRETIONS UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS SCHEME
	8 REGRADING OF POSTS

